

The Miniature Goat Registry PO Box 310, Ione CA 95640

PO Box 310, Ione CA 95640 (619) 417-0989 TMGRoffice@gmail.com | TMGRonline.com

BYLAWS

(Originally Adopted on August 14, 2015)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Bylaws	2	2
ARTICLE 1. NAME	2	2
	2	
ARTICLE 3. PRINCIPAL C	PFFICE2	2
ARTICLE 4. MEMBERSHII	2	2
ARTICLE 5. BOARD OF D	IRECTORS2	2
5.1 General Powers	2	2
5.2 Number		3
5.3 Qualifications		3
5.4 Election of Director	prs	3
5.4.1 Initial Di	rectors	3
5.4.2 Successo	r Directors	3
5.4.3 Term of 0	Office	3
5.4.4 Vacancie	s3	3
5.5 Meetings		ł
5.6 Special Meetings.		ł
5.7 Meetings by Telep	9hone4	ł
5.8 Place of Meetings	4	ł
5.9 Notice of Special 1	Vleetings4	ł
5.9.1 In Writin	4	ł
	Communication5	
5.9.3 Electroni	c Transmission5	5
	Electronic Notice5	
5.10 Waiver of Notice	5	5
5.10.1 Record	5	5
5.10.2 By Atte	ndance5	5
5.11 Quorum	5	5
5.12 Manner of Acting	g	5
5.13 Presumption of A	Assent	5
	Without a Meeting6	
0	6	
	6	
5.17 Filling Vacancies		5
	es7	
	g or Temporary Committees7	
	n; Manner of Acting7	
	tion7	
	ıl of Committee Member7	
	and Qualifications	
	n of Office8	
	8	
	8	
5.24 Vacancies	8	3

5.25 Compensation	8
ARTICLE 6 STANDARD OF CARE	8
6.1 General	8
ARTICLE 7. ADVISORY BOARD	9
ARTICLE 8. INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS	9
8.1 Compensation	9
8.2 Conflict of Interest	9
8.3 Review of Certain Transactions	10
ARTICLE 9. ADMINISTRATIVE AND FINANCIAL PROVISIONS	10
9.1 Loans	10
9.2 Loans or Extensions of Credit to Officers and Directors	10
9.3 Compensation	10
9.4 Deposits	10
9.5 Books and Records	
9.6 Corporate Seal	10
9.7 Accounting Year	11
9.8 Rules of Procedure	11
ARTICLE 10. INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS	11
ARTICLE 11. WAIVER OF NOTICE	11
ARTICLE 12. AMENDMENTS	11

BYLAWS

ARTICLE 1. NAME

The name of this corporation is The Miniature Goat Registry.

ARTICLE 2. PURPOSES

This corporation has been formed for charitable purposes, to promote and improve the miniature goat breeds in all appropriate ways, including through education, research, data collection and pedigree tracking. However, the corporation shall not, except to an insubstantial degree, engage in any activities or exercise any powers that are not in furtherance of its primary charitable purposes.

ARTICLE 3. PRINCIPAL OFFICE

The principal office of the corporation shall be located at its principal place of business or such other place as the Board of Directors ("*Board*") may designate. The corporation may have such other offices, either within or without the State of Arizona, as the Board may designate or as the business of the corporation may require from time to time.

ARTICLE 4. MEMBERSHIP

The corporation shall not have any members. The corporation may from time to time use the term "members" to refer to persons associated with it, but such persons shall not be members within the meaning of the Arizona Corporations Act 10-3140.

ARTICLE 5. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

5.1 General Powers

Subject to the provisions and limitations of the Law and any other applicable laws, the business and affairs of the corporation shall be managed, and all corporate powers shall be exercised by or under the direction of the Board of Directors.

5.2 Number

Initially, the Board shall consist of not less than 3 nor more than 8 Directors, the specific number to be set by resolution of the Board. The number of Directors may be changed from time to time by amendment to these Bylaws, provided that no decrease in the number shall have the effect of shortening the term of any incumbent Director.

5.3 Qualifications

Directors shall be 21 years of age or older and agree to promote the purpose of the corporation as outlined in the Articles and Mission Statement. The corporation intends that the Board of Directors shall collectively represent a diversity of relevant backgrounds and skills to enable the Board of Directors to make informed, well-balanced decisions on the economic viability of corporate activities. Directors may have such other qualifications as the Board may prescribe by amendment to these Bylaws.

5.4 Election of Directors

5.4.1 Initial Directors

The initial Directors named in the Articles of Incorporation shall serve until their successors have been elected and seated at the first annual meeting of the Board. Except for the initial directors, the Board of Directors shall elect the directors.

5.4.2 Successor Directors

Successor Directors shall be elected each year at the annual meeting of the Board by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors then in office.

5.4.3 Term of Office

Unless a Director dies, resigns or is removed, he or she shall hold office for a two (2) year term. If any annual meeting is not held or the directors are not appointed at the annual meeting, the directors may be appointed at any meeting of the Board.

5.4.4 Vacancies

A vacancy on the Board shall exist on the occurrence of the following: (a) the death, resignation, or removal of any director; (b) the declaration by resolution of the Board of a vacancy in the office of a director who has been declared of unsound mind by a final order of court, convicted of a felony, or found by final order of judgment of any court to have breached a duty under the Law dealing with standards of conduct for a director, or has missed three (3) consecutive meetings of the Board of Directors or a total of four (4) meetings of the Board during any one calendar year; (c) an increase in the authorized number of directors; or (d) the failure of the directors, at any annual or other meeting of directors at which any director or directors are to be elected, to elect the full authorized number of directors.

The Board of Directors, by affirmative vote of a majority of the directors then in office, may remove any director without cause at any regular or special meeting; provided that the director to be removed has been notified in writing in the manner set forth in Article 5, Section 9 that such action would be considered at the meeting.

Any director may resign effective upon giving written notice to the president, the secretary or the Board of Directors. Unless the Attorney General of the State is first notified, no director may resign when the corporation would then be left without a duly elected director in charge of its affairs.

5.5 Meetings

The annual meeting of the Board shall be held during the month of January on a date chosen by the president or the Board for the purposes of electing Directors and officers and transacting such business as may properly come before the meeting. If the annual meeting is not held on the date designated therefor, the Board shall cause the meeting to be held as soon thereafter as may be convenient.

By resolution, the Board may specify the date, time and place for holding regular meetings without other notice than such resolution.

5.6 Special Meetings

Special meetings of the Board or any committee designated and appointed by the Board may be called by or at the written request of the President or any 2/3 majority of the Directors, or, in the case of a committee meeting, by the chairman of the committee. The person or persons authorized to call special meetings may fix any place either within or without the State of Arizona as the place for holding any special Board or committee meeting called by them. Notwithstanding the above, any meeting may be held at any place consented to in writing by all the directors, either before or after the meeting. Consents shall be filed with the minutes of the meeting.

5.7 Meetings by Telephone

Members of the Board or any committee designated by the Board may participate in a meeting of such Board or committee by means of a conference telephone or similar communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other at the same time. Participation by such means shall constitute presence in person at a meeting.

5.8 Place of Meetings

All meetings shall be held at the principal office of the corporation or at such other place within or without the State of Arizona designated by the Board, by any persons entitled to call a meeting or by a waiver of notice signed by all Directors.

5.9 Notice of Special Meetings

5.9.1 In Writing

Notices in writing may be delivered or mailed to the Director at his or her address shown on the records of the corporation not less than 10 days before the meeting. If notice is delivered via regular mail, the notice shall be deemed effective when deposited in the official government mail properly addressed with postage thereon prepaid. Neither the business to be transacted at nor the purpose of any special meeting need be specified in the notice of a special meeting, with the exception of removal of a director.

5.9.2 Personal Communication

Notice may be by personal communication with the Director not less than 10 days before the meeting.

5.9.3 Electronic Transmission

Notices may be provided in an electronic transmission and be electronically transmitted not less than 10 days before the meeting. Notice in an electronic transmission is effective only with respect to those Directors that have consented, in the form of a record, to receive electronically transmitted notices and designated in such consent the address, location or system to which these notices may be electronically transmitted. A Director who has consented to receipt of electronically transmitted notices may revoke the consent by delivering a revocation to the corporation in the form of a record. Furthermore, the consent is automatically revoked if the corporation is unable to electronically transmit two consecutive notices given by the corporation, and this inability becomes known to the person responsible for giving notice. Notice provided in an electronic transmission is effective when it is electronically transmitted to an address, location or system designated by the recipient for that purpose.

5.9.4 Posting Electronic Notice

Notice may be provided to Directors who have consented to receipt of electronically transmitted notices by posting the notice on an electronic network and delivering to such Directors a separate record of the posting, together with comprehensible instructions regarding how to obtain access to the posting on the electronic network not less than 10 days before the meeting. Notice is effective when it has been posted to an electronic network and a separate record of the posting has been delivered to the recipient as provided by this Section 5.9.3.

5.10 Waiver of Notice

5.10.1 Record

Whenever any notice is required to be given to any Director under the provisions of these Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation or applicable Arizona law, a waiver thereof in the form of a record, including, without limitation, an electronic transmission from the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice. Neither the business to be transacted at nor the purpose of any regular or special meetings of the Board need be specified in the waiver of notice of such meeting.

5.10.2 By Attendance

The attendance of a Director at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except where a Director attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.

5.11 Quorum

A majority of the number of Directors fixed by or in the manner provided by these Bylaws shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any Board meeting. If a quorum is not present at a meeting, a majority of the Directors present may adjourn the meeting to another time without further notice if less than 24 hours or with notice to directors not present if time of the adjourned meeting will be held in more than 24 hours.

5.12 Manner of Acting

The act of the majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which there is a quorum shall be the act of the Board, unless the vote of a greater number is required by these Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation or applicable Arizona law.

5.13 Presumption of Assent

A Director of the corporation present at a Board meeting at which action on any corporate matter is taken shall be presumed to have assented to the action taken unless his or her dissent or abstention is entered in the minutes of the meeting, or unless such Director files a written dissent or abstention to such action with the person acting as secretary of the meeting before the adjournment thereof, or forwards such dissent or abstention by registered mail to the Secretary

of the corporation immediately after the adjournment of the meeting. Such right to dissent or abstain shall not apply to a Director who voted in favor of such action.

5.14 Action by Board Without a Meeting

Any action which could be taken at a meeting of the Board may be taken without a meeting if a consent in the form of a record, which consent clearly sets forth the action to be taken, is executed by all the Directors. Any such record shall be inserted in the minute book as if it were the minutes of a Board meeting. For purposes of this Section, record means information inscribed on a tangible medium or contained in an electronic transmission.

5.15 Resignation

Any Director may resign at any time by delivering written notice to the President or the Secretary or the Board at the registered office of the corporation, or by giving oral notice at any meeting of the Board of Directors. Any such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein, or if the time is not specified, upon delivery thereof and, unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

5.16 Removal

One or more Directors may be removed from office, with or without cause, by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors fixed by or in the manner provided by these Bylaws.

5.17 Filling Vacancies

A vacancy in the position of Director may be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining Directors though less than a quorum of the Board. A Director who fills a vacancy shall serve for the unexpired term of his or her predecessor in office.

5.18 Board Committees

5.18.1 Standing or Temporary Committees

The Board, by resolution adopted by a majority of the Directors in office, may designate and appoint one or more standing or temporary committees, each of which shall consist of two or more Directors. Such committees shall have and exercise the authority of the Directors in the management of the corporation, subject to such limitations as may be prescribed by the Board and by applicable Arizona law, except that no committee shall have the authority to: (a) amend, alter or repeal these Bylaws; (b) elect, appoint or remove any member of any other committee or any Director or officer of the corporation; (c) amend the Articles of Incorporation; (d) adopt a plan of merger or consolidation with another corporation; (e) authorize the sale, lease, or exchange of all or substantially all of the property and assets of the corporation not in the ordinary course of business; (f) authorize the voluntary dissolution of the corporation or revoke proceedings therefor; (g) adopt a plan for the distribution of the assets of the corporation; or (h) amend, alter or repeal any resolution of the Board which by its terms provides that it shall not be amended, altered or repealed by a committee. The designation and appointment of any such committee and the delegation thereto of authority shall not operate to relieve the Board or any individual Director of any responsibility imposed upon it, him or her by law.

5.18.2 Quorum; Manner of Acting

A majority of the number of Directors composing any committee shall constitute a quorum, and the act of a majority of the members of a committee present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the committee.

5.18.3 Resignation

Any member of any committee may resign at any time by delivering written notice thereof to the President, the Secretary or the chairman of such committee, or by giving oral or written notice at any meeting of such committee. Any such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein or, if the time is not specified, upon delivery thereof and, unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective

5.18.4 Removal of Committee Member

The Board, by resolution adopted by a majority of the Directors in office, may remove from office any member of any committee elected or appointed by it.

5.19 Compensation

By Board resolution, Directors and committee members may be paid their expenses, if any, of attendance at each Board or committee meeting, or a fixed sum for attendance at each Board or committee meeting.

OFFICERS

5.20 Number and Qualifications

The officers of the corporation shall be a President, a Vice-President, a Secretary and a Treasurer, each of whom shall be elected by the Board. Other officers and assistant officers may be elected or appointed by the Board, such officers and assistant officers to hold office for such period, have such authority and perform such duties as are provided by resolutions or other directives of the Board. Any officer may be assigned by the Board any additional title that the Board deems appropriate. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person, except the offices of President and Secretary. All officers who are not Directors of the corporation shall be ex-officio members of the Board.

5.21 Election and Term of Office

The officers of the corporation shall be elected each year by the Board at the annual meeting of the Board. Unless an officer dies, resigns, or is removed from office, he or she shall hold office until the next annual meeting of the Board or until his or her successor is elected.

5.22 Resignation

Any officer may resign at any time by delivering written notice to the President, the Vice President, the Secretary or the Board, or by giving oral or written notice at any meeting of the Board. Any such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein or, if the time is not specified, upon delivery thereof and, unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

5.23 Removal

Any officer or agent elected or appointed by the Board may be removed by the affirmative vote of at least a majority of the Board whenever in its judgment the best interests of the corporation would be served thereby, but such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the person so removed.

5.24 Vacancies

A vacancy in any office created by the death, resignation, removal, disqualification, creation of a new office or any other cause may be filled by the Board for the unexpired portion of the term or for a new term established by the Board.

5.25 Compensation

The officers shall receive no compensation for their service as officers but may receive reimbursement for reasonable expenditures incurred on behalf of the corporation.

ARTICLE 6. STANDARD OF CARE

6.1 General. A director shall perform the duties of a director, including duties as a member of any committee of the Board on which the director may serve, in good faith, in a manner such director believes to be in the best interest of this corporation and with such care, including reasonable inquiry, as an ordinarily prudent person in a like situation would use under similar circumstances.

In performing the duties of a director, a director shall be entitled to rely on information, opinions, reports or statements, including financial statements and other financial data, in each case prepared or presented by:

(a) One or more officers or employees of the corporation whom the director believes to be reliable and competent in the matters presented;

(b) Counsel, independent accountants or other persons as to matters which the director believes to be within such person's professional or expert competence; or

(c) A committee of the Board upon which the director does not serve, as to matters within its designated authority, which committee the director believes to merit confidence, so long as in any such case, the director acts in good faith, after reasonable inquiry when the need therefore is indicated by the circumstances and without knowledge that would cause such reliance to be unwarranted.

Except as provided in Article 8, a person who performs the duties of a director in accordance with the above shall have no liability based upon any failure or alleged failure to discharge that person's obligations as a director, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, any actions or omissions which exceed or defeat a public or charitable purpose to which the corporation, or assets held by it, are dedicated.

ARTICLE 7. ADVISORY BOARD

The Board of Directors may appoint an Advisory Board of two or more persons to provide advice and assistance to the Board. Recommendation for Members of the Advisory Board will be solicited from the members of TMGR. Each region will submit no more than two recommendations for the Advisory Board. Those recommended must be members in good standing of TMGR and agree to abide by the Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, Rules and Code of Ethics of The Miniature Goat Registry. Members of the Advisory Board may be invited to meetings of the Board but shall not be entitled to vote or exercise other powers of a director of the corporation; provided, however, to the extent permitted by law, members of the Advisory Board shall be entitled to the same limitations on liability and rights to indemnification as directors of the corporation. The Board of Directors may determine by separate resolution the operational rules which shall govern the Advisory Board. Advisory Board members may be removed at any time, with or without cause, by a majority vote of the Board.

ARTICLE 8. INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

8.1 Compensation

Directors who receive any compensation for services in any capacity, directly or indirectly, from the corporation may not vote on matters pertaining to that Director's compensation.

8.2 Conflict of Interest

The purpose of the conflict of interest policy is to protect the corporation's interest when it is contemplating entering into a transaction or arrangement that might benefit the private interest of one of its officers or directors, or that might otherwise result in a possible excess benefit transaction. This policy is intended to supplement but not replace any applicable state or federal laws governing conflict of interest applicable to nonprofit and charitable corporations and is not intended as an exclusive statement of responsibilities.

Directors and officers shall disclose to the Board any financial interest which the Director or officer directly or indirectly has in any person or entity which is a party to a transaction under consideration by the Board. The interested Director or officer shall abstain from voting on the transaction.

8.3 Review of Certain Transactions

Prior to entering into any compensation agreement, contract for goods or services, or any other transaction with any person who is in a position to exercise influence over the affairs of the corporation, the Board shall establish that the proposed transaction is reasonable when compared with a similarly-situated organization for functionally comparable positions, goods or services rendered.

ARTICLE 9. ADMINISTRATIVE AND FINANCIAL PROVISIONS 9.1 Loans

No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the corporation and no evidences of indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by a resolution of the Board. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

9.2 Loans or Extensions of Credit to Officers and Directors

No loans shall be made and no credit shall be extended by the corporation to its officers or Directors.

9.3 Compensation

No director, officer, Highest Compensated Employee or Highest Compensated Independent Contractor may receive compensation, directly or indirectly, from the Corporation unless such compensation is first determined by the disinterested directors, or an authorized committee thereof, to be just and reasonable to the corporation

9.4 Deposits

All funds of the corporation not otherwise employed shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the corporation in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as the Board may select.

9.5 Books and Records

The corporation shall keep at its principal or registered office copies of its current Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws; correct and adequate records of accounts and finances, minutes of the proceedings of its Boards and any minutes which may be maintained by committees of the Board; records of the names and post office addresses of its officers and Directors, and such other records as may be necessary or advisable.

9.6 Corporate Seal

If the Board determines that it is advisable, the corporation shall have a corporate seal consisting of the name of the corporation, the state of its incorporation and the year of its incorporation.

9.7 Accounting Year

Unless a different accounting year is at any time selected by the Board, the accounting year of the corporation shall be the twelve months ending December 31st.

9.8 Rules of Procedure

The rules of procedure at meetings of the Board and committees of the Board shall be rules contained in Robert's Rules of Order on Parliamentary Procedure, Newly Revised, so far as applicable and when not inconsistent with these Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation, or any resolution of the Board.

ARTICLE 10. INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Subject to the further provisions hereof, the Corporation shall indemnify any and all of its directors, officers, former directors, and former officers, to the full extent permitted under applicable law against all amounts incurred by them and each of them, including but not limited to expenses, legal fees, costs, judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement which may be actually and reasonably incurred, rendered or levied in any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding brought against any of them for or on account of any action or omission alleged to have been committed while acting within the scope of his duties as a director or officer of the Corporation. Whenever any such director or officer shall report to the

President of the Corporation or the Board of Directors that he has incurred or may incur such amounts, the Corporation shall, within a reasonable time thereafter, determine a manner consistent with applicable law whether, in regard to the matter involved, such person acted or failed to act in good faith and in a manner reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interest of the Corporation and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding had no reasonable cause to believe his conduct was unlawful. If the Corporation so determines that such person acted or failed to act in such a manner with regard to the matter involved, indemnification shall be mandatory and shall be automatically extended as specified herein; provided, however, that the Corporation shall have the right to refuse indemnification in any instance in which the person to whom indemnification would otherwise have been applicable shall not offer the Corporation opportunity, its own expense and through counsel of its own choosing, to defend him in the action, suit or proceeding. Nothing contained herein is intended to limit any right of indemnification or other rights provided by Arizona Revised Statutes Sections 10-3851, or other applicable law.

ARTICLE 11. - WAIVER OF NOTICE

Whenever any notice is required to be given under the provisions of the Arizona Nonprofit Corporation Act, A.R.S. 10-3101 et.seq. or under the provisions of the articles of incorporation or the bylaws of the corporation, a waiver of such notice in writing signed by the person or persons entitles to such notice, whether before or after the time stated in the same, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.

ARTICLE 12. AMENDMENTS

These Bylaws may be altered, amended or repealed and new Bylaws may be adopted at any meeting of the Board by the vote of a majority of the number of Directors fixed by or in the manner provided by these Bylaws, or by the written consent of each of the Directors.